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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

To the Shareholders

Saudi Company for Hardware
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opigion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Saudi Company for Hardware, a Saudi Joint Stock
Company and its subsidiary (“the Group™) which cemprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and & summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in notes 1 to 36.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*I FRS”) that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified
Public Accountants (“SOCPA™.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further desciibed in the A uditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our repart. We are independent of the Group in
eccordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that
are relevant to our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibifities in accardance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the cutrent period, These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as whote, and in forming our epinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these maiters.

We have fulfilied the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key sudit maiter

Impeirment of goodwill
The Group recognized SR 22.4 million of goodwill at

December 31, 2018 as a result of acquisition of
Medscan Terminal Services in prior year.

In accordance with IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets,
an entity is required to test goodwill acquired in a
business combination for impairment at least
annually irrespective of whether there is any
indication of impairment,

Goodwill is monitored by the management at the
level of only one Cash-Generaiing Unit (CGU) ~
Medscan Terminal Company Limited, The goodwill
impairment assessment was carried out by the
management based on a discounted cash flow
analysis, which uses the most recent five years
husiness projections prepared by the management,
The result of the assessment did not result in any
impairment loss to be recognized.

There is a risk regarding the potential impairment of
the carrying value of goodwill given the judgements
management is required to make in respect of the
assumptions used fo determine the recoverable
amount of goodwill under value in use basis.

In carrying out the impairment assessment,
significant judgment and assumptions are required in
determining the future cash flows, growth rates,
discount rates and terminal value. Therefore, we
identified the impairment testing of goodwill as a key
audit matter,

Refer note 6 and note 16 to the consolidated finaneial
statements for additiona! details.

We performed the following audit procedures in
relation to goodwill impairment;

o  Assessed the adequacy of the design and tested the
implementation of controls over monitoring the
carrying value of goodwill.

¢ Challenged management’s assessment of the cash
generating units (CGU) within the Group based on
a review of the cash flows internally reported by
management, and our understanding of the Group
structure,

» Challenged management’s future cash flow
forecasts by comparing the forecasts to the latest
Board approved projections, We critically reviewed
the historical accuracy of budgets and forecasts by,
for example, comparing the budgets used in the
prior year value in use model ageinst the actual
performance of the business in the current year, to
evaluate the quality and accuracy of the forecasting
process,

» Assessed the appropriateness of cash flow
projections of value in use of the business and
challenged the reasonableness of key assumptions
such as the future business growth rate, terminal
growth rate and discount rate, etc., based on our
knowledge of the business and industry by
comparing the assumptions to historical results and
comparing the current year actual results with prior
year forecast and other refevant information.

» We checked whether the impairment model had
been prepared on the basis of management’s
assumptions and was arithmetically accurate. We
challenged the appropriateness of sensitivities of
these assumptions based on work performed on the
key assumptions, and recalculated these sensitized
scenarios in order to assess the potential impact of
a range of possible outcomes; and

Considered the adequacy of the Group’s goodwill
disclosure in termns of applicable accounting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Pravision for shrinkage, slow moving and obsolete
inventories

The nature of operations of the Group requires that it
is necessary to hold merchandise at its showrooms,
franchisees and at regional warehouses in order to sell
the merchandise to customers in various showrooms
and to avoid shortage of merchandise at any point in
time. The Group had gross inventory of merchandise
amounting to SR 702.7 million (2017: SR 622.3
million) and provision for shrinkage, slow and non-
moving inventorics amounting to SR 18.9 million
{2017: SR 25.3 million) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The Group provides for slow moving and obsolete
inventory based on its historical experience, sales
trends and others factors

The Group considers the results of physical inventory
count te determine the expecied level of inventory
shrinkage provision.

This methodology relies upon significant judgments
and key assumptions used by the management in
determining appropriate provisioning percentages
and is therefore considered as a key audit matter.

Refer note 3 to the Consolidated financial statements
for accounting policy related to the inventory and
note 18 for relevant disclosure.

We obtained a detailed understanding and evaluated the
design and tested fmplementation of controls that the
Group has established in relation to inventory provision.

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of the
management’s assumptions applied in calculating the
value of inventory provision by performing the
following;

e Reviewed the Group’s provisioning policy with
specific consideration given to inventories which are
discontinved by the management with Jless
movement in a given year;

° Verified the value of a sample of inventory to
confirm whether it is held at the lower of cost and net
realizable value through comparison to vendor
invoices and recent sales prices;

e Tested the reliability of the underlying data used by
management to calculate the slow and non-moving
and obsolescence allowance, typically an aged
merchandise analysis showing last movements;

¢ Assessed historical accuracy of inventory provision
by comparing it with actual inventory write-offs in
relation to stock loss or other inventory provisioning
adjustments;

s Recomputed the provision recorded to verify that
they are recorded in line with the Group’s policy and
at their net realizable value. This was done in
conjunction with 1T specialist for some components
where the provision is based on the aging; and

¢ Evaluated the shrinkage provision made by the
Group by considering the inventory shortages trend
reported in recent stock counts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 15 Rajab 1439H, corresponding to April 1,
2018.

Other information included in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report

Other information consist of the information included in the Group’s 2018 annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, Management is responsible for the other
information in its annual report. The annual report is expected ta be made available to us after the date of auditor’s
report.

QOur opinian on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is (o read the other
information identified above and, in duing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materialily misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matier to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncemerts
issued by SOCPA and Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whiether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do se.

Those charged with governance, Le. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endarsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always
detect & material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financia! statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
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We glso:

sy

Identify and assess the risks ot materiaf misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materiat misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher then the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internel confrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate i the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control,

Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements oz, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure end content of the consolidated financial statements, icluding the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion,

We communicate with tiase charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
tining of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement tha we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matter. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that the matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequence of doing 8o would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest of such communication.

Deloitte and Touche & Co
Chartered Accountants

B

Ehsan A. Makhdoum
License No. 358
27 Jumada II, 1440
March 4, 2016




SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Notes SR SR
Revenue 7.8 1,390,470,544 1,455,932,275
Cost of revenue 9 (1,140,564,889 )  (1.171,250.599)
GROSS PROFIT 249,905,655 284.681.676
Selling and markeling exgenses 0 (19,208,567 } {25,866,940)
General and administration expenses il {118,336,936 } (108,876,495 )
OPERATING PROFIT 112,360,152 149,938,235
Other income 3,352,075 2841115
Finance cost {2 (6,310,505 ) (7,444,695 )
PROFIT BEFORE ZAKAT 109,401,722 145,334,655
Lakat 13 (11,518274) (10435457
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 47,883,448 134.899.198
OTHER COMPREUENSIVE INCOME
Treans that will not he reclussified subseqaently to profit or
losy
Net changes in fuir value el equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive icome . -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR 97,883,448 134,899,198
Earnings per share (Saudi Rivals)
Basic and dituted earnings per share attributable 1o the equity
sharcholders of the Company 14 2.72 375
Weighted average number of shares 36,000,000 36.060.000
S
Chief Fidancial Officer Chief Executive Officer Clmi:@q;lmirectm‘s

The accompunying notes form an integral part of these consotidated financial statenwents
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SAUDIL COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2018

2018 2017

Notes SR SR
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property and equipment 15 254,536,178 244,083,692
Intangible assels 16 46,981,580 43,435,487
Lyguity mvestment at FVOC] 17 9,662,153 9,662,153
Total non-current assels 305,179,911 207,181,332
Current assets
Inventories i8 683, 844,77 397.007.742
Accounts receivable 19 30,625,800 21,050,760
Prepayments and other receivables 20 61,137,404 61,023,381
Cash and cash equivalents 21 16,333,485 27,320,630
Total current assets 791,941,471 706,402,713
TOTAL ASSETS 1,097,121,382 1.603,584,045
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 1.26 360,000,000 240,000,000
Stufutory resenve 27 9,788,345 37.701 4129
Retained earnings 263,643,898 300,396,702
Fair value reserve 7 1,401,706 {801,700
Total equity L034.833.943 599,499,841
Nou-current liabilities
Long lerm borrowimgs 22 59,360,072 82,875,600
Retirement benehit obligutions RX 40,843,454 38,865,590
Total non-current labilitics 100,209,526 121,740,390
Current linbilities
Short erm borrowings 22 37,678,573 34,026.405
Current portion of long term borrowings 22 23,508,929 i15,787.778
Accounts payable 24 222,483,732 158,432,806
Accrued expenses and other Liabilities 23 66,070,340 62.460.221
Zakat payable 13 12,240,295 §1.342,327
Davidends pavable 28 96,042 94,017
Total current liabilities 362,077,913 282343.6014
Toial Hiabilities 402,287,439 J04.084.204
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,097,121,382  1.005,584.043

Chiel Execative Officer

e

Chairmian of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financiad statements

-7



SAUDECOMPANY FOR HARDWARE

FSAUDTIOINT STOCK COMPANY!

COUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY
FORFHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Share Statutor Rewatned Fasr vajue

capital reserve Caraings Fesve Towat

Note SR SR SR SR SR

Balusve at Junuvary 1, 2617 42RO 20987 404 FAOLTOU SO6.600.643
Nt profit Los the year . - P34 894 TUR o ‘[.34\. ),i‘)s;%.
ERBier comprehensive oty jor the yem e ) - - - o
Toab comprehensive invone Jor the year - B RS R R B EER TR
Trazasfor to stlilury sosene 27 - 13489520 (13486920 -
Divsdend disirivation B CR2000,0005 ©CR006,0001
Balance at Becember 31, 2017 240G 000 37701439 M0.396 702 3U9.359 847
Jamaary L 288 s proviousty seported) 3 240060000 37 A 300396707 400,700 3994499 843
Aaljustnent i application of IFRS 15 3 - . iS63.24Hn - (86321
Adjusunent mapphcation of [FRS v 3 - ) - tLORL 3 L0863
Thatinoy af Janwary 1, 20E8 (ndjusted) 240 LGU ST TO1 439 ZUTRAT 550 A0 RU0.050 Y5
- - YTEEIALE - YTRRIA4E

- - YTEBIAAS - 97883448

27 - GIBSAAS (WTRE IS - -

ital lisad 26 PRRO60000 (37.701,43%) (62,298,501 - -
stnbudion 28 - - tounutgngy - T DUDAHLG)

Baionce ai Decomber 31, 2018 7 Joth oo ‘}‘?88.}45 163,043,898 L4, 7680 634,833,943

nignasying sotes form an inegral part of these consolidated Nnancial stotements
-8-



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit for the vear

Adjustments for:

Zakat

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization

{Gaingloss on disposal of propeny and equipment
Write-oft property and equipment

{Reversal)provision for slow meving items and inventory shortages
Write-off inventories

Provision for doubttul debts

Provision for other receivables

Provision for retirement benetit obligations

Movement in workine capital:

Inventorics

Accounts receivable

Prepayments and other receivables

Aveounts payable

Averued expenses and other current lubidities

Cuash generated from operations

Zalkat pad

Finanee cost paid

Retrement beneit obligations paid

Net cush generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase for property and equipment

Proceeds from disposat of property and equipment
Purchase for intangible assels

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in short erm borrowings

Proceeds of long term borrowings

Repayments of fong term bosrowings

Dhividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net ehange in cash and cash cquivalents

Caslr and cash equivalents at beginning ol the vear
CASIHTAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF TIIE
YEAR

Significant non-cash transaction:
Adjustinent df property and equipment {aote 15}

Chief Fibancial ®fficer Chief Executive Officer

Th secompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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2018 2017
SR SR
97,883,448 134,899,198
11,518,274 10,435,457
6,310,505 7.444,695
42,960,536 38.042.847
(21,167 93401
250,398 -
(6,400.839 ) 3.227.045
19,490,775 17,922,516
450,242 289,500
1,820,715 -
6,520,496 7,499,808
(99,926,970) (104,242,231}
(10,304,396 ) (958,130}
(1.879.411) (5010157}
68,948,342 33.916.857
2,172,183 {42,030.790 )
139,793,131 101,510,016
(10,748,869 ) 19.975,972)
(7,269,371 (6.021.746)
(4,542,632)  (2,661,967)
117,232,259 82,850,331

(33,237.220)

(85.475211)

80,412 1.083.392
(2,929.014) (4,873,363 )
(56,085,822)  (X8.963.182)

3,652,170 23,814,598

- 54,000,000
(15,787,777)  (20,946.195)
C(59.997,975)  (77.968,297)
(72,133,582)  (21.099.804)
(10,987,145) 27.214.745)

27320630 54535573

16,333 485 27,320,630

(4,897,476 ) -

Chairman of Board of Dircctors



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED BECEMBER 31, 2018

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Saudi Company for Hardware (the "Corpany”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia under commenrcial registration number 1010056595 issued in Riyadh on Safar 26, 1405H
(corresponding to November 19, 1984). The Capital Market Authority (the "CMA") announced on Jumada
11'5,1436H (corresponding to March 25, 2015) the CMA's board decision to approve the launch of 7,200,000
shares in the Company initial public offering which represents 30% of the total shares of the Company's
24,000,000 shares in which it was allocated to investment funds and licensed individuals. The Company's
shares were listed in the Saudi Stock Market ("Tadawul"} on Sha’ban 23, 1436H (comresponding to May 12,
2015),

As of December 31, 2018 the Company’s share capital was SR 360 million divided into 36 million shares
of SR 10 each ( 2017: SR 240 million divided into 24 million shares of SR 10 each).

The Company is principally engaged in retailing and wholesaling of household and office supplies and
appliances, construction tools and equipment, and electrical tools and hardware.,

The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 86387, Riyadh 11622, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiary and its following 30 stores located in various cities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia:

Effective ownership

Subsidiary name Country percentage Activities
Medscan Terminal Company Transportation and
Limited Saudi Arabia 100% logistics

The Company and its subsidiary are referred to hereinaficr as (“the Group®).

Commercial
Stores Region Date of CR registration No.
Takhassoussi Riyadh 26/02/1405 1010056595
Hamra Riyadh 14/04/1420 1010154852
Badiaa Riyadh 1971171430 1010276497
Rimal Riyadh 23/06/1431 1010289426
Khurais Riyadh 22/07/1417 1010144072
Al Qasr Riyadh 22/01/1433 1010322479
Northern Ring Road Riyadh 08/07/1425 1010201062
Alia Plaza Riyadh 06/06/1435 1010409935
Al Thaagar Plaza Riyadh 16/04/1436 1010430261
King Abdullah Branch Riyadh 04/07/1407 1010065245
Buraydah Qasim 13/04/1426 1131020838
Andalous Jeddah 10/01/1415 4030104324
Tahlia Jeddsh 10/02/1409 4030061896
Prince Sultzn Road Jeddah 15/03/1431 4030198058
Al Sawary Mall Jeddah 06/06/1435 4030268514
Medina Al Mounawara Branch Medina Al Mounawara 23/06/1428 4650039295
Yanbu Branch Yanbu 18/07/1431 4700012605
Dammam Branch Dammam 28/05/1416 2050030529
Dhahran Branch Dhahran 14/11/1420 2052000780
Jubail Branch Jubail 13/03/1420 2055004380
Al Ahsa Branch Al Ahsa 20/01/1421 2252026146
Jazan Branch Jazan 16/04/1436 5900031715
Hail Branch Hail 16/04/1436 3350043304
Onayzah Branch Qasim 29/04/1437 1128019513

- 10 -



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 26818

1. CORFORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Commercial
Stores _Region Date of CR registration No,
Al Kharj Branch Al Kharj 22/1:/1437 1011024139
Hafr El Batten Hafr El Batten 22/1171437 2511025181
Damman Dammam 14/01/1439 2050113956
Skaka (new) Aljouf (11/09/1439 3400116314
Al Tyaf (new) Riyadh 20/01/1440 1010461248
Al Taif (new) Al Taif 20/01/1440 4032220085
Workshop
Workshop Center Riyadh 27/08/1431 1010293034

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not applied the
following new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or sfter
IFRS 16 Leases Janvary 1, 2019
IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessec accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the
leage term is 12 months or less or the undetlying asset has a low value. Lessors
continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16°s approach
to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused fax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncerlzinty over income tax trestments under JAS 12. It specifically
considers:

Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively:
Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;
The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, ursed tax credits and tax rates; and
e The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

Amendments to 145 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures Relating  January i, 2019
to long-term interests in associates and joint ventures. These amendments
clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

S11-



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT 8TOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on er after
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017: Cycle amending IFRS  January 1, 2019
3, IFRS 11, 145 12 and 145 23.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits January 1, 2019
The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on
scttlement} is calculated by measuring the defined benefit liability {asset)
using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered and plan assets
before and efier the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but
ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit
plan is in a surplus position}.

IAS 19 is now clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may
result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined
in a second step and is recognized in the normal manner in other
comprehensive income.

Amendments to IAS | and IAS & January 1, 2020

» The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in
IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying
concept of materiality in IFRS Standards,

e The concept of ‘obscuring” material information with immaterial
information has been included as part of the new definition.

¢ The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from
‘could influence’ to ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’.

¢ The definition of material in IAS 8 has been replaced by a reference to
the definition of material in TAS 1. In addition, the IASB amended other
Standards and the Conceptual Framework that contain a definition of
material or refer to the term “material’ to ensure consistency.
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

New and revised IFRSs

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

*  Reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence.

¢ Introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new liability
definition that is likely to be broader than the definition it replaces, but
does not change the distinction between a Hability and an equity
instrument.

¢ Removes from the asset and liability definitions references to the
expected flow of economic benefits—this Jowers the hurdle for
identifying the existence of an asset or liability and puts more emphasis
on reflecting uncertainty in measurement.

+  Discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides some
guidance on how the IASB would go about selecting a measurement
basis for a particular asset or liability,

e States that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or loss,
and that only in exceptional circumstances will the IASB use other
comprehensive income and only for income or expenses that arise from
a change in the current value of an asset or liability.

=  Discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the reporting entity
and consolidated financial statements.

The TASB has also updated references in Standards so that they will refer to
the new Framework, but it has not made consequential amendments to
Standards 1o reflect changes in the Framework such as changing the asset and
liability definitions in the Standards,

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfiflment
value and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach
for all insurance contracts, These requirements are designed to achieve the
goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS
17 supersedes TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of January 1, 2021.

Amendments to IFRS 10

Re-issued consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the treatment of the sale or
contribution of assets from and investor to its associate or joint venture.
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
{(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS {(IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
Amendments to IFRS 3 January 1, 2020

¢ The amendments mean that, to be considered a business, an acquired set
of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

»  Additional guidance is introduced that helps to determine whether
a substantive process has been acquired. New illustrative examples assist
with the interpretation of what is considered a business.

= The IASB has removed the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes and continuing o
produce outputs.

¢ The definitions of a business and of outputs are narrowed by focusing on
goods and services provided to customers. The reference to an ability to
reduce costs is removed.

® The IASB has introduced an optional conceniration test that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business- it is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new
standards, interpretations and amendments, except for as highlighted in previous paragraphs, may have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

Impact assessment of IFRS 16 Leases
The Group is required to adopt [FRS 16 Leases from January 1, 2019. The Group has performed initial

assessment during the year and assessed the estimated impact that initial application of IFRS 16 will have on
its consolidated financial statements, as described below. The actual impacts of adopting the standard on
January 1, 2019 may change at the {ime of final assessment.

The Group plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on January 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective approach.
therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be recognized as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained eamings at January 1, 2019,

As at December 31, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of SR 725.8 million.
A preliminary assessment indicates that SR 725.8 million of these arrangements relate to leases other than
short term leases and leases of low value assets, and hence the Group will recognise a right of use asset of
SR 433.8 million, a corresponding lease liabilities of SR 489.6 million as at January 1, 2019 with a total
decrease in equity amounting to SR 76.5 million.

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material and hence the Group does not expect any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial siatements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as endorsed by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(SOCPA) (IFRS endorsed by SOCPA).

As required by CMA through its circular dated October 16, 2016, the Group applied cost model to measure
the property and equipment upon adopting IFRS for three years starting from IFRS adoption date
January 1, 2017.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
financial instruments at FVTOCI that are measured at fair values and by using the actuarial basis for end of
service benefits, on the accrual basis of accounting. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Saudi Riyal (“SR”), which is the Group’s functional currency.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and an entities
controlied by the Company and its subsidiary. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses contro] of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Allintragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consclidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
Acquisition-related costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiablc assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK. COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations (continued)

+  deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

*  liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-Based Payments at the
acquisition date (see below); and

+  assels (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS § Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in 2 business combination includes contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ {(which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured fo fair value at
subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when
it transfers control of a product or service to & customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duty. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue
is recognized. The Group recognizes revenue from the following major sources.

Sale of goods at retail showrooms

Sale of goods to retail customers, revenue is recognized when control of the goods has transferred being at
the point the customer purchases the goods at the retail outlets. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customers purchases the goods.
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Sale of goods at retail showrooms (continued)

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have a right of return within 7 days. At the point of
sale, a refund Lability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is recognized for those products expected
to be returned. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover the product when customers exercise their
right of return so consequently recognizes a right to returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales. The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns on a
portfolio level using the expected value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant reversal
in the cumulative revenue recognized will not occur given the consistent level of return over previous years.

The Group sells hardware, clectronic equipment, mobile phones, fumiture, household items, etc., directly io
credit customers both through its own retail outlets and through internet sales. Revenue is recognized when
the control of the goods has transferred, being at the point in time the goods are delivered to the customers.
When the customer initially purchases the goods online the transaction price received by the group is
recognized as a contract lahility until the goods have been delivered to the customer.

The Group operates in loyalty point’s programs, “My Rewards™ which allows customers to accumulate
points when they purchase products in the Group’s retail stores. The points can then be redeemed for free
products, subject to a minimum numbers of points being obtained. A contract liability is recognized for
revenue relating to the loyalty points at the time of the initial sales transaction. Revenue from the loyalty
points is recognized when the points are redeemed by the customer. Award points expired 12 months after
the initial sale. Revenue for points that are not expected to be redeemed is recognized in proportion to the
pattern of rights exercised by customers.

No element of financing component is deemed present as the sales are made either on cash or on credit terms
consistent with market practice.

Rendering of services
Revenue from logistic services is recognized when the services are completed and invoiced to the customers.

Cost of revenue
Costs of revenue principally comprise the cost of goods sold, which include direct labor, landed costs of
merchandise sold, showroom lease rent, staff costs and depreciation.

Expenses
Selling and marketing expenses principally comprise of costs incurred in the distribution and marketing of
the Group’s products. All other expenses are classified as general and administrative expenses.

General and administration expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of revenue
as required under generally accepted accounting principles. Allocations between general and administration
expenses, selling and marketing expenses and cost of revenue, when required, are made on a consistent
basis.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of those
assets, uniil such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Zakat

The Group is subject to the regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT") in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. The provision is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The zakat charge is computed on the Saudi shareholders’ share of the zakat base or adjusted net income
whichever is higher. Additional amounts, if any, that may become due on finalization of an assessment are
accounted for in the year in which assessment is finalized.

Value added tax

¢ Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax (“VAT"), except:

¢ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

» The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the GAZT is included as part of receivables
or payables in the statement of consolidated financial position,

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, except frechold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including borrowing costs. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality
of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment. Where major components of an item of
property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Disposal of asset is recognized when significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership have been
transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognized within ‘Other income’ in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2818

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit and Ioss and other comprehensive income using the straight
line method whereby the cost of an operating asset less its estimated residual value is written off over its
estimated useful life. Depreciation on addition is charged from the month in which the asset is available for
usc and on disposals up to the month of disposal. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed annually.

The following usefu! lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Years
Buildings 20
Furniture and fixtures 251020
Computer hardware 2t04
Vehicles 4
Tools and equipment 4107

Leasehold improvements are being amortized on the straight-line basis over the shorter of useful life or lease
period.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, and is not depreciated until the asset
is brought into commercial operations and available for intended use.

Intangible asscts

Intangible gssets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accurmnulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets comprise goodwill and software licenses,

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above in business combination policy. Goodwill is
not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
expected (o benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the cartying amowmt of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Software licenses

Intangible assets with finite usefu! lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives from 2 to 7 years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecogpition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in profit or joss
when the asset is derecognized,

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets {0 determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use arc tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprise purchase cost and, where
applicable, direct costs (e.g. shipping, transportation, insurance, and other costs) and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories are valued
on a weighted average cost basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financiat Habilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financia! assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributabie to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 1o
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By defauit, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset:

¢ the Group may irrevocably clect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

¢ the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (see (iv)
below),

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as well as
oni financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises ECL for accounts receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The
expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrament at
an amount equal to ECL..

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-Jooking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration of vatious external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account, where deemed applicable, when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;
significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument,

¢ ec.g asignificant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length
of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

¢ an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

@ an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations,
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assefs (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 90 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise,

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(2) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near tenm, and

(3) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfi] its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performin g means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to the irevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

£} Definition of default

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteriz used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

¢ when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

» information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the
Group).

hrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when & financial asset is
more than 365 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

ii} Credit impaired financial assels

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred, Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b} a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above);

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

.23



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

iit} Write off poli

The Group writes off a financial assct when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

iv}) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above.

As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information,

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to make payments only in the event of a default
by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance
is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
¢xpire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to contro] the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated lability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial asseis {confinued}

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sun of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition,
on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluatior: reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liahilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for trading or (ii1) it is designated as at FVTPL,

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

¢ ithas been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the ncar term; or

¢ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability heid for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if*

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e  the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
marnaged and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

¢ it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of 2 designated hedging relationship (see
Hedge accounting policy). The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated as at F VTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The Temaining
amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised ir. profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial lability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the
financial lability.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group that are designated by the Group as at
FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 34,

Financial liabilities measured subseguently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ji)
held-for-trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method,

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of 2 financial
liability,

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of an asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

# the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9 (see financial assets above);
and

+ the amount recognised initially less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out above.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received and discounted using the original effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. If the modification is mot
substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability before the modification; and (2)
the present value of the cash flows afier modification should be recognised in profit or loss as the
modification gain or loss within other gains and losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual teporting period. Re-
measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses is reflected immediately in the statement of financial
position with a charge or credif recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of
a plan amendment. Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

= netinterest expense or income; and

e re-mmeasurement,

Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligations recognized in the statement of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans, Any surplus resulting from this caleulation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions
in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits arc measured at the andiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks, cash on hand, short term deposits, demand deposits and
highly liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, bank balances, and short-term: deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

-7



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CON TINUED)

Provisions {continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to setile the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Dividend
Dividends are recorded in the consolidated financial statement in the period in which these are approved.

Accounts payable and accruals

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year, which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilitics unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. For liabilities which are
probable, they are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position under accounts payable and
accruals. A contingent asset is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic, and diluted (if any), earnings per shares (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing net income for the year of the Group by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares held ( (if any). Diluted EPS , if any, is
determined by adjusting the net income for the year and the weighted average nmumber of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for the own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Segmental reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services {a business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(a geographic segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Group are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that, period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Property and equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life, which is based on expected
usage of the assel, expected physical wear and tear, the repair and maintenance program and technological
obsolescence arising from changes and the residual value. The management has not considered any residual
value as it is deemed immaterial,

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company has identified the GDP
and market credit risk of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost end net realizable value. Adjustments to reduce the cost of
inventories to net realizable value, if required, are made at the product level for estimated excess,
obsolescence or damages. Factors influencing these adjustments include change in demand, product pricing,
physical deterioration and quality issues.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting petiod that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year.

Property and equipment

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
caleulation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis.

Allowance for doubtfil accounts receivable

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is
based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will
affect each other. The Group uses estimates for the computation of loss rates.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on defauit. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows
from collateral and integral credit enhancements,
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of defined benefit obligations

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of
the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assomptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and other assumptions., Duc to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its Jong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is hi ghly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cash Generating Unit ("CGU") exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of jts fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair
value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing off the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF") model. The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company
is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the perfolmance of the CGU
being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as
the expected future net cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Contract liabilities (refund liability)

The refund liability relates to customers’ right to return products within 7 days of purchase, At the point
of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is recognised for those products
expected to be returned. The Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value method.

5. IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 15 AND 9

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and IFRS 9 "Financial
Instruments” from January 1, 2018,

The effect of applying these standards is mainly attributed to the following:

Presentation of revenue net of sales return, customer rewards points, contract assets (if any), contract
cost and coniract liabilities.
+  Anincrease in impairment losses recognized on financial assets,

Effect of Applying IFRS 15 "Revenne from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related
Interpretations of IFRS and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those
contracts are in the scope of other standards. The Group recognizes revenue, which is an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer, when customer obtains controls of the goods or services at a point in time i.e. on delivery and
acknowledgement of goods and services.

The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature of changes to previous accounting policies
in relation to the Group’s sale of goods are set out below:
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5. IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 15 AND 9 (CONTINUED)

Effect of Applying TFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"

Products
Hardware devices, tools and other goods.

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, significant payment terms
Customers obtain control of products when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted by the
customers. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognized at that point in time.

Credit invoices are usually payable within 30 — 120 days. Invoices are generated and recognised as revenue
net of applicabie discounts which relate to the items sold. Customer loyalty points are offered to customers
and therefore there is deferred revenue (contract liability) to be recognized for the items sold.

For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur.
Therefore, the amount of revenue recognized is adjusted for expected retums, which is re estimated based
on the historical data. Returned goods liability is recorded in “accrued expenses and other liabilities” for
cash sales and credit sales.

a) Contract assets

Under IFRS 15, if an entity performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, the entity shall present the contract as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. A contract asset is an entity's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the entity has transferred to a customer. There was no restatement due
to this change; except for reclassification between receivables to contract assets,

b) Contract liabilities

The following contract liabilities are recognised in relation to the application of IFRS 15
»  Advance payment received from customers

o Deferred revenue {rewards points)

¢} Accounting for refunds
The Group's customers have a right to return the product within a given period (7 days), The Group is obliged
to refund the purchase price.

Under IFRS 15, a refund liability for the expected refunds to customers is recognised as adjustment to
revenue in trade and other payables. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover the product from the
customer where the customer exercises his right of return and recognises an asset and a corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales. As at January 1, 2018 the Group recognized a refund lability amounted to
SR 2.47 million and recognized a corresponding asset also from these expected returns amounted to
SR 1.60 million. The asset is measured by reference to the former carrying amount of the product. The costs
to recover the products are not material because the customer usually returns the product in a saleable
condition at the store.
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5. IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 15 AND 9 (CONTINUED)

Effect of Applving IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"(, continued)

Nature of change in accounting pelicy (continued)

d) Accounting for customer loyalty program

In previous reporting periods, the consideration received from the sale of goods was allocated to the points
using spending matrix method, Under this method, customers who spend money in purchasing goods will
receive loyalty points as specified in the following table:

Customer Spending  Percentage

Level {Saudi Riyals) of points Remarks
First { to 1,600 0% No points will be added in the first level
Second 1,001 to 6,000 3% 3 % of purchases from Saudi Riyals 1,001 to
6,000 within one Gregorian year of the first
invoice
Third 6,001 to 12,000 4% 4 % of purchases from Saudi Riyals 6001 10
12,000 within one Gregorian year of the first
invoice
Fourth 12,001 and Above 6% 6 % of purchases exceeding Saudi Riyals

12,000 within one Gregorian year Gregorian
year of the first invoice

Under IFRS 15, the total consideration must be allocated to the points and goods based on the relative
standalone sclling prices. Management calculated the loyalty points under the new method and determined
that there is no material variance between using spending matrix method and relative stand-alone seiling
prices.

¢) Presentation of assets and liabilitics related to contracts with customers
The Group has also voluntarily changed the presentation of certain amounts in the tonsolidated statement
of financial position to reflect the terminology of IFRS 15:

« Confract liabilities in relation to customer’s advance payments which are included in accrued expenses
and other liabilities {SR 2 million as at December 31, 2018).

- Contract liabilities in relation to the customer loyalty program were previously presented as deferred
revenue, see {d) above.

+ Other payables relating to refund liabilitics were previously presented in current provisions
(SR 1.62 million as at December 31, 2018).
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5. IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 15 AND 9 (CONTINUED)

Effect of Applving IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments"

TFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilitics and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The Group has adopted IFRS 9 using the cumulative effect method with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. January 1, 201R), therefore, the
comparative information has not been restated. IFRS 9 is applicable to financial assets and financial Liabilities
and covers the classification, measurement, impairment and de-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
together with a new hedge accounting model. The details of new significant accounting policies and the naturc
and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out below:

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
A debt invesiment is measured at FVTOCTI if it meets following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

+ It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows

Equity investments at FVTOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

The effect of adopting [FRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at January 1, 2018 relates solely to
the new impairment requirements, as described further below.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under
IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under [FRS 9 for the class of the Group's financial assets as at
January 1, 2018,

Original
Original New carrying New carrying
classification under classification amount amount as
Financial assets Note TAS 39 under IFRS 9 under IAS 39 under IFRS 9
Equity investment A Available for sale Equity investment:
at FVOCI 9,662,153 9,662,153
Cash and bank balances B Loans and receivables Amortized cost 27,320,630 27,320,630
Accounts receivable C  Loans and receivables Amortized cost 21,050,760 20,771,682
Other financial assets B Loans and receivables Amortized cost 7,577,360 6,029,381

65,610,903 63,783,816
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

5. IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 15 AND 9 (CONTINUED)
Effect of Applying IFRS % "Financial Instruments" (continued)
Eqguity investments at FVIT'OCI {(continued)

A - These equity sccurities represent investments that the Group intends to hold for the long term for strategic
purposes. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Group has designated these investments at the date of initial application
as measured at FVOCL Unlike TAS 39, the accumulated fair value reserve related to these investments will
never be reclassified to profit or loss.

B — All bank balances are assessed to have low credit risk at each reporting date as they are held with reputable
banking institutions.

C — Accounts receivables that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at
amortized cost. An increase of SR 279,108 in the allowance for impairment over these receivables was
recognised in the opening retained earnings at January 1, 2018 on transition to IFRS 9.

D - Sub - Lease receivables that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at
amortized cost. An increase of SR 1,547,979 in the allowance for impairment over these lease receivables
was recognised in the opening retained carnings at January 1, 2018 on {ransition to IFRS 9.

Impairment of financial instruments

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach to measure the provision for loss in an amount
equal to the expected credit loss over the life of the financial instrument. Since credit risk has not increased
significantly, life time ECL is used to provide for impairment provision,

The Group has applied IFRS 9 and 15 using the cumulative effect method with the effect of initially applying
those standards recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. January 1, 2018) therefore, the comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 18, JIAS 11 and IAS 39. The
following tables summarize the impact of adopting TFRS 9 and 15 on the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position as of January 1, 2018:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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5.

IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF IFRS 15 AND 9 (CONTINUED)

Consolidated statement of financial position as of January 1, 2018:

ASSETS

Neop-current assets

Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Available for sales investment
Equity investments at FVTOC]

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital

Statutory reserve

Retained eamings

Fair value reserve

Total equity

Nen-current liabilities
Long term debts
Retirement benefit obligations

‘Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long term debts
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Zalkat paysble
Dividend payable

Total current liabflities
Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Amounts

Amounts including the
without impact  Adjustment / impacts of
of IFRS 9 and reclassifications  Adjustment IFRS 9 and
IFRS 15 IFRS ¢ IFRS 15 IFRS 15

e DR SR SR BR
244,083,692 - 244,083,692
43,435,487 - - 43,435,487
9,662,153 {9.662,153) - -
MMMMMMM - 5,662,153 9,662,153
297,181,332 - - 297,181,332
597,007,742 - 597,807,742
21,050,760 {279,108) - 20,771,652
61,023,581 (1,547,979 1,603,106 61,078,748
27,320,630 - - 27,326,638
706,402,713 (1,827,087) 1,603,106 706,178,732
1,003,584,045 (1,827,087) 1,603,106 1,003,364,064
246,000,000 - 240,000,000
57,701,439 . - 57,701,439
300,396,702 (1,686,136) (863,210) 297,847,356
1,401,700 - - 1,401,700
599,492,841 (1,686,136) (863,219) 596,950,495
82,875,000 - - 82,875,000
38,865,590 - 38,865,590
121,746,590 - - 121,744,580
34,026,405 - - 34,026,405
15,787,778 - 15,787,778
158,432,866 - - 158,432,866
62,460,221 (140,951) 2,466,316 64,785,586
11,542,327 . - 11,542,327
84,017 - * 84,017
282,343,614 (140,951) 2466316 284,668,979
404,084,204 {140,851} 2,466,316 406,409,569
1,603,584,0458 (1,827.687) 1,603,106 1,003,366,064
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6. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 23 Safar 1438H (corresponding to November 23, 2016), the Group signed an agreement {"agreement")
to purchase the entire partners’ shares in Medscan Terminal Company Ltd. ("Medscan"), which represented
all the assets and liabilities of Medscan as well as transferring the brand name, logo and other intellectual
property elements belonging to Medscan as of the agreement date, which is the date of the transfer of
effective control to the Group ("acquisition date"), in exchange for a consideration of SR 37 million. The
Group paid the full amount on the agreement date. The legal procedures related to the acquisition were
completed during the quarter ended December 31, 2016. According to the terms of the agreement, the
Company bears the costs related to the acquisition process.

International Financial Reporting Standard 3, (IFRS 3) “Business Combinations”, requires that all identified
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination should be carried at fair values in the acquirer’s
balance sheet and any intangible assets acquired in the business combination are required to be separately
recognised and carried at fair values. IFRS 3 allows the acquirer a maximum period of one year from the
date of acquisition to finalise determination of the fair values of the assets and liabilities and to determine
the value of any intangible separately identified.

The Group initially recognized Medscan assets and liabilities at provisional fair value which were equal to
the book value as of November 23, 2016, which resulted in a goodwill of SR 25.4 million, representing the
excess of purchase consideration over the initial book value of the acquired net assets, amounting to
SR 11.6 million. In 2017, and in compliance with the requirement specified in IFRS 3, the fair valuation
exercise of the recorded assets and liabilitics was completed by the management as a result of which new
information was obtained that necessitated adjustments to the provisional fair values of the acquired net
assets. Accordingly, adjustments were made in these consolidated financial statements.

The following is a summary of the values that were initially recognized for the acquired Group on November
23, 2016 (date of acquisition) along with re-mcasurements for each major category of assets and liabilities:

Fair values Adjustments

provisionally as Fair
determined as  a resulf of values
at  {inalization finalized
November 23, of fair value and
Notes 2016 cxercise adjusted
Current assets:

Cash and bank balances 5,586,939 - 5,586,939
Accounts receivable 4,301,472 - 4301472
Prepayments and other receivable 836,856 - 836,856
10,723,267 - 10,725,267

Non-current assets:
Property and equipment 3,081,054 3,023,475 6,104,529
Total assets 13,806,321 3,623,475 16,829,796

Current lisbilities:
Accounts payable 516,165 - 516,165
Accrued and other liabilities 530,067 : 530,067
Retirement benefit obligations 1,161,453 . 1,161,453
Total current lisbilities 2,207,685 B - 2,207,685
Net assets acquired 11,598,636 3,023,475 14,622,111
Less: investment consideration 37,000,000 - 37.000,000
Goodwill 16 25,401,364 - 2237718488
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR TIE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

6. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The goodwill of SR 22.4 million is attributable to the high profitability of the acquired business, revenue
growth and future market developments of the acquired business.

6.1 Acquired trade receivables
The fair value of acquired trade receivables were SR 4,301,472, The gross contractual amount for accounts
receivable due is also SR 4,301,472, No amount is uncollectible from these trade receivables.

6.2 Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of SR 10.64 million and net profit of SR 4.5 million to the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017: SR 10.6 million and SR 4.6 million respective contribution in
revenue and net income).

REVENUE
The Group generates 1ts revenue trom sale of goods and rendering of transportation and logistics services

over time and at point in time. This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each
reportable segment in note 8 operating segments.

2018 2017

SR SR

Sales of goods, net 1,373,221,195 1,437,572,048
Service revenue 6,607,089 7,716,215
Logistics revenue 10,642,260 10,644,012

1,390,470,544 1,455,932.275

Service revenue represents the Group’s services department’s revenue from delivery, installation and
maintenance of items sold to customers.

Logistics revenuc represents the revenue eamed by Medscan, the subsidiary of the Group.

Sales of goods constitutes the followings:

2018 2017

SR SR

Retai! sales, net 1,359,259,203 1,423,709,443
Whole-sale 13,961,992 13,862,605

1,373,221,195 1,437,572,048
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

8, SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two main operating segments namely, sales and services and logistic services.

Sales and Services segment: This segment includes sale of goods made to retail and wholesale customers.
Service department represent services department's income from delivery, installation and maintenance of
items sold.

Logistic Services: The logistics and related services segment provides a comprehensive logistics offering
to its clients, including freight forwarding, transportation and contract logistics.

The Group's Chief Executive Officer (Chief Operating Decision Maker) reviews the internal
management reports of each scgment at least quarterly for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of performance. Operating segments are organized based on factors including distribution
method, targeted customers and geographic location.

The segment information provided to the strategic steering committee for the operating segment as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Sales and Logistic

For the year ended December 31, 2018 services services Total

SR SR SR
Revenue:
Total segment revenue 1,379,828,284 23,647,855 1,403,476,139
Inter-segment revenue - (13,005,595 ) {13,005,595)
Revenue from external customers 1,379,828,284 10,642,260 1,396,470,544
Profit from operations 107,823,572 4,536,580 112,360,152
Finance cost (6,310,505 ) - (6,310,505 )
Other income, net 3,344,412 7,663 3,352,073
Profit before zakat 104,857,479 4,544,243 109,401,722
Zakat (11,496,774 ) (21,500 (11,518,274)
Net profit for the year 93,360,705 4,532,743 97,883,448

-38.



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information: For the year

ended December 31, 2018

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization
Total segment assets:

December 31, 2018

Total segment liabilities;
December 31, 2018

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Revenue:

Total segment revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Revenue from external customers
Profit from operations

Finance cost

Other income, net

Profit before zakat

Zakat
Net profit for the year

Other segment information: For the year

ended December 31, 2017
Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization
Total segment assets:

December 31, 2017

Total segment liabilities:
December 31, 2017

Sales
and Logistic

services services Total

SR SR SR

50,280,966 5,885,268 56,166,234

37,577,615 5,382,921 42,960,536

1,081,101,209 16,020,173 1,097,121,382

455,146,328 7,141,111 462,287,439

Sales
and Logistic

services services Total

N SR SR SR

1,445,288,263 17,790,637 1,463,078,900
- (7,146,625) (7,146,625 )

1,445,288,263 10,644,012 1,455,932,275

145,462,976 4,475,265 149,938,235
(7,444,695 ) - (7,444,695}

2,559,568 281,547 2,841,115

140,577,843 4,756,812 145,334,655
{10,273,367) (162,090 ) (10,435,457

130,304,476 4,594,722 134,859,198

84,560,856 5,488,034 90,048,890

36,633,329 1,409,518 38,042,847

987,574,738 16,009,307 1,003,584,045

400,832,141 3,252,083 404,084,204
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9. COST OF REVENUE

Cost of goods seld
Loss from shrinkage and inventory shortages

Provision for slow moving items and inventory shortages

Salaries and other benefits
Rentals and leasehold expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Franchisee commission

Others

10. SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Advertisement and promotion
Salaries and other benefits

11. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Services

Depreciation and amortization
Rentals and leasehold expenses
Provision for other receivables
Provision for doubtful debts
Others

12. FINANCE COST

Interest on short term borrowings
Interest on long term borrowings
Bank and other charges

- 40 -

2018 2017

Si SR
840,452,839 883,614,367
19,490,775 17,922,516
(6,400,839 ) 3,227,045
124,888,615 125,894,718
92,288,618 81,132,597
28,311,401 23,160,936
15,037,150 15,022,812
26,496,330 21,275,608
1,140,564,889  1,171,250,599
2018 2017
SR SR
16,898,891 23,938,263
2,309,676 1,928,683
19,208,567 25,866,946
2018 2017
SR SR
65,898,876 61,037,685
23,762,292 18,473,090
14,649,135 14,881,911
11,496,527 12,492,583
1,820,715 :
450,242 289,500
259,149 1,701,726
118,336,936 108,876,495
2018 2017

SR s8R
693,092 1,551,211
3,174,285 3,172,402
2,443,128 2,721,082
6,310,505 7,444,695
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN UED)
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13.

14,

ZAKAT
The principal elements of the Zakat base are as follows:
2018 2017
_ SR SR
Non-current assets 305,179,911 297,181,332
Non-current liabilities 160,209,526 121,740,590
Opening sharcholders’ equity 599,499,841 506,600,643
Profit before Zakat 109,401,722 145,334,655
Dividends 60,000,000 42,000,000

The Zakat is based on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The movement in Group's
zakat provision is as follows:

2018 20017
. SR SR
January 1, 11,542,327 11,082,842
Charged to profit or loss 12,240,295 11,542,327
Over provision for prior year (722,021} (1,106,870)
Payments during the year (10,748,869 ) (9,975,972)
Transfer to acerued expenses and other liabilities {71.437) :
December 31, 12,240,295 11,542,327
The charge for the year for zakat is as follows:
2018 2017
SR SR
In respect of current year 12,240,295 11,542,327
In respect of prior year (722,021) (1,106,870)
Total zakat expense recognised in current year 11,518,274 10,435,457

The Company received the final zakat assessment up to 2006 and the assessments for the years 2007
to 2017 are under study by the GAZT. The Group started filing a consolidated zakat return for the
Company and its subsidiary starting January 1, 2017. The final zakat assessment for the subsidiary is
under review by the GAZT for the years 2011 to 2016.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Basic eamings per share is calcolated by dividing the total comprehensive income for the year
atiributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding end of year 12,000,000, included 12,000,000 for last year as well. The calculation of diluted
earnings per share is not applicable to the Group. Also, no separate earning per share calculation from
continuing operations has been presented since there were no discontinued operations during the vear.

The EPS caleulation is given below:

2018 2017
SR SR

Total comprehensive income atiributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent 97,883,448 134,899,198
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - beginning of year 24,600,000 24,000,000
Bonus shares issued in 2018/adjustment in 2017 12,000,000 12,000,000
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 36,008,000 36,000,000
Eamings per share 2,72 3.75

Earnings per share for 2017 have been adjusted due to the bonus shares issued during the year. There
is no dilutive cffect on the basic earnings per share of the Group.
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SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON TINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

15. PROPERTYAND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

16.

Land amounting to SR 17.4 million was designated as a collateral against the bank borrowing to construct
the head office building in Riyadh. Adjustment to cost and accumulated depreciations are made to gross
up the property and equipment value to consolidate the subsidiary and to adjust the negotiated discount
received from a subcontractor on the amount billed in prior year.

Capital work-in-progress as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 represents advance paid for

fixed asset purchases and cost of stores under construction / maintenance.

Allocation of depreciation charge is as follows:

Cost of revenue

General and administration expenses

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

January 1, 2017
Additions
Disposals

December 31, 2017
Additions
December 31, 2018

Amortisation
January 1, 2017
Amortisation
Disposals

December 31, 2017
Amortisation

December 31, 2018

Net book values as at

December 31, 2018
December 31, 2017

Others

2018 2017

SR SR

28,248,186 23,104,847

9,329,220 9,918,005

37,871,615 33,022 852

Software

licenses Goodwill Others Total

SR SR SR SR

34,320,821 22,377,889 - 56,698,710

3,547,737 . 1,325,942 4 873,679
(519) - - (519)

37,868,039 22,377,889 1,325,942 61,571,870

2,929,014 - - 2,925,014

40,797,053 22,377,889 1,325,942 64,500,884

13,116,591 13,116,591

5,019,995 - 5,019,995
_______ {203) - {203)

18,136,383 - 18,136,383

5,244,191 133,730 5,382,921

mmmmmm 23,385,574 - 133,730 23,519,304

17,411,479 22,377,889 1,192,212 40,981,580

19,731,656 22.377.88¢ 1,325,942 43,435 487

Others includes an amount of SR 1.3 million paid as a key money to a previous tenant to acquire possession
of leasehold land located in King Abdulaziz Port Dammam.

AlHocation of amortisation charge is as follows:

Cost of revenue

General and administration expenses

-43.

2018 2017
63,015 56,089
5,319,906 4,963,906
5,382,921 5,019,995




SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THY YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

16. INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

17.

Goodwill
On 23 Safar 1438H (corresponding to November 23, 2016), the Group acquired Medscan Terminal
Company as 100% owned subsidiary.

The Goodwill is related to the acquisition of Medscan Terminal Company. Goodwill is monitored by the
management at the level of only one cash-generating unit (Medscan). A segment level of sunmmary of the
goodwill allocation is presented below:

2018 2017
] SH SR
Medscan Terminal Company 22,377,889 22,377,886

The management carried out an impairment exercise in respect of goodwill. The impairment test carried out
was based on a discounted cash flow analysis (DCF) which utilized the most recent five vear business
projections prepared by the Group’s management, The results of this exercise did not result in any
impairment loss to be recognized. However, Management determined forecast sales growth and Gross
margin based on past performance and market developments.

Terminal value is calculated using free cash flow to the CGU and Gordon Growth Model for the final year
of the forecasted period.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations
The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

Sales volume (Annual Growth Rate) 7%
Discount rate 12.67%
Long term growth rate 2%

The management has determined the value assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Sales volume (annual growth rate)
Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period, based on past performance and management's
expectations of market development.

Long term growth rate
This is the average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-year forecast period.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the cash generating units, the management believes that no
reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the
subsidiary to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FVTOCH
2018 2017
SR SR
ACE Internationa! Hardware 9,662,153 9,662,153
Percentage of shareholding 2.3% 2.3%
Number of shares 22,022 22,022

The equity investment of SR 9.66 million in ACE International Hardware (ATH) is measured at fair value
based on SR 438.75 per share price through repurchase quotation available from ATH.



SAUDI COMPANY FOR HARDWARE
(SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FYOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

18.

19.

INVENTORIES
2018 2017
,,,,,,,, SR SR
Merchandise:
In stores and warehouses 599,327,728 577,200,293
On consignment 19,590,963 21,056,054
Consumables 6,064,653 4,229,992
Goods-in-transit 77,750,511 19,811,321
702,733,855 622,297,660
Less: provision for slow moving items and inventory shortages {18,889.079) {25,289,918)
683,844,776 597,007,742

Movement in provision for slow moving items and inventory shortages is as follows:

2018 2017

e BR SR

Balance at the beginning of the year 25,289,918 27,363,282

{Reversal)/ provision during the year (6,400,839) 3,227,045
Written-off - (5,300,409)

Balance at the end of the year 18,889,079 25,289,918

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was

SR 854.44 million (2017: SR 883.61 million )

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2018 2017
) SR SR
Accounts receivable — trade 25,900,649 19,110,906
— others 6,860,145 3,345,492
Less : allowance for doubtful debts (2,134,988) (1.405,638)
30,625,806 21,050,760
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:
2618 2017
77777 SR SR
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,405,638 1,116,138
Adjustment on application of IFRS 9 279,168 -
Opening balance (adjusted) 1,684,746 1,116,138
Provision during the year 450,242 289,500
Balance at the end of the year 2,134,988 1,405,638
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19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

20.

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generaily on 30 - 120 days terms. As
of December 31, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past
duenor Lessthan 61-90  91-180 181-365 More than
Total impaired 60 days days days days  one year
December 31, 2018 32,760,794 26,096,496 3,051,520 394,124 1,922,245 809.865 486,544
December 31,2017 22,456,398 16,368,318 3,141,203 647,887 1,123991 1,174,999 -

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime Expected Credit
Loss (ECL). The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by
reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, forward looking factors such as general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the

forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVALBES

Prepaid expenses

- Rent

- Insurance

- Others
Advances to employees
Advances to suppliers
Advance rent
Others

Less : provision for other receivables

Others includes an amount of sub-lease receivables
(December 31, 2017 SR 1.5 million) which is fully impaired.

January 1,
Adjustment on application of IFRS 9

Opening balance (adjusted)
Provision during the year
December 31,
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2018 2017
SR SR
17,731,801 29,250,348
2,817,296 2,563,238
15,399,731 11,220,763
6,790,736 6,029,381
8,430,151 6,407,743
5,403,443 »
7,932,940 5,552,108
64,506,098 61,023,581
(3,368,694) -
61,137,404 61,023,581
amounting to SR 1.5 million
2018 2017
SR SR
1,547,879 ;
1,547,979
1,820,715 .
3,368,694
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21.

22,

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
SR SR
Cash in hand 1,801,769 3,042,286
Bank balances 14,531,716 24,278,344
16,333,485 27,320,630

BORROWINGS
2018 2017
,,,,,,,, SR SR
Short term borrowings 37,678,575 34,026,405
Long term borrowings 82,875,001 98,662,778
Total borrowings 128,553,576 132,689,183
Short term borrowings 37,678,575 34,026,405
Current portion of long term borrowings 23,508,929 15,787,778
Non-current portion of long term borrowings 59,366,072 82,875,000

Total borrowings

120,553,576

132,689,183

Maturity profile of non-current portion of long-term borrowings is as follows:

2018 2017

SR SR

Later than 1 year 27,366,073 15,610,112
Later than 2 years but not more than 5 years 31,999,999 67,264,888
59,366,072 82,875,000

The Group obtained borrowing facilities in the amount of SR 438 million from various local banks. Such
facilities provide facilities for short and long-term borrowings, letters of credit and guarantee and notes
payable for bills of exchange to finance working capital, investments, and capital expenditures. These
facilities, which are in form of Murabaha and Tawarroq financing, bear financial charges at prevailing
market rates based on Saudi Inter-bank Offer Rate (*SIBOR") and Riyadh Inter-bank Offer Rate
("RIBOR"). These facility agreements also include covenants which require maintenance of certain
financial ratios, restrict payments of dividends and other requirements which the Group was in compliance
with as of December 31, 2018. The facilities are secured by order notes payable on demand equivalent to
the total value of the facilities, assignment of insurance ¢claim proceeds in favor of the lenders and pledge
of a tittle deed (refer note 15)” These facilities as of December 31, 2018 include a loan in the amount of
SR 25 million for the construction of the Group's Head Office building and the land of the Head Office
with the book value of SR 17.4 million was designated as a collateral against this loan.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
2018 2017
______________ SR SR
Balance at the beginning of the year 38,865,590 34,027,749
Current service cost 5,404,570 6,645,562
Interest cost 1,115,926 854,246
Paid during the year (4,542,632) (2,661,967)
Balance at the end of the year 40,843,454 38,865,590
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23.

24.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

2018 2017
Discount rate 3.40% 3.40%
Rate of salary increase 7% 4.02%

All movements in the retirement benefit obligation are recognized in profit or loss. The effect of the
actuarial losses or gains is not material.

Sensitivily apalyses

2018 2017
S8R SR
Increase in discount rate of 1% 626,646 76,910
Decrease in discount rate of 1% (656,018) (189,345)
Increase in salary rate of 1% (1,186,852) (398,556)
Decrease in salary rate of 1% 1,146,583 380,837
Expected total benefit payments are:
2018 2017
SR SR
Less than a year 12,723,319 3,570,846
Between 1~ 5 years 53,280,856 17,295,651
Over 5 years 11,220,859 78,326,693
77,225,034 99,193,190
ACCOUNTS PAYABLES
2018 2017
SR ) SR
Accounts payable — trade 195,852,762 126,328,508
- pthers 24,799,629 30,586,414
Due to related parties 1,831,341 1,517,944
132,483,732 138,432,866

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 - 120 days. No interest is charged on the trade
payables outstanding balance. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
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25. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

26.

27

-

28,

2018 2017
SR SR
Gift cards and vouchers 35,087,431 29,321,393
Advances from customers 2,001,400 625,022
Employee related lLiabilities 16,599,833 22,284,348
Accrued expenses 8,054,776 7,178,446
Accrued rentals 3,018,604 2,742,302
Advance rent received - 118,951
Others 1,368,296 188,859
66,070,340 62,460,221

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2018 the Company’s share capital was SR 360 million divided into 36 million shares
of SR 10 each ( 2017: SR 240 million divided into 24 million shares of SR 10 each).

In October 2018, the Board of Directors proposed to increase share capital of the Company from SR 240
million to SR 360 million through issuing one bonus share for every two existing shares owned by the
shareholders. Bonus shares are limited to shareholding recorded in company’s shareholders register at the
Securities Depository Center (Edaa), at the end of the second trading day following the date of the
extraordinary general assembly day. The increase in sharc capital is through capitalization of retained
earnings of SR 62.3 million and statutory reserve of SR 57.7 million. The increase was approved by the
shareholders in their meeting held on 10 Jamuda 1440 H (comesponding to December 17, 2018). Legal
formalities related to the increase in the share capital were completed during the vear.

STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Company's By-
laws, the Company has established a statutory reserve by the appropriation of 10% of total comprehensive
income until the reserve equaled 50% of the share capital. Following a recent changge to the Regulations
for Companies, appropriations can cease when the reserve equals 30% instead of 50% of the share capital,
The Company has accordingly amended its by-laws in 2017 to comply with the new regulations. This
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

In accordance with extra-ordinary general assembly meeting held on May 4, 2017, the Company's
shareholders resolved to delegate the authority to the Board of Directors to distribute dividends fo the
shareholders for the year 2017. Accordingly, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 8,
2018 resolved to distribute cash dividends to the Company's shareholders amounting to SR 36 million
at SR 1.5 per share (SR 42 million at SR 1.75 per share in July 2017). The dividend was distributed on
March 21, 2018.

In accordance with extra-ordinary general assembly meeting held on May 13, 2018, the Company's
shareholders resolved to delegate the authority to the Board of Directors to distribute dividends to the
shareholders for the first half of the year 2018, Accordingly, the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on July 23, 2018 resolved to distribute cash dividends to the Company's shareholders amounting to SR 24
million at SR 1 per share. The dividend was distributed on September 19, 2018.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

During the years 2018 and 2017, the Group and its subsidiary transacted with the following related parties:

Nature of
Name of related party relationship
Inheritors of Abdullah Taha Raksh Shareholder
Saudi Arabian Marketing and Agencies Company Ltd. Associated

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties
during the year as well as balances with related parties as at December 31 , 2018 and 201 7:

Rental
agreement Amounts Amounts
for two owed by owed to
showrooms Purchases _ related parties  related parties
2018
Inheritors of Abdullah Taha Baksh 4,235,000 -
Saudi Arabian Marketing and Agencies
Company Ltd. - 13,609,944 - 1,831,34)
2017
Inkeritors of Abdullah Taha Baksh 3,703,183 - -
Saudi Arabian Marketing and Agencies
Company Ltd. - 10,543,844 . 1,517,944

Key management personnel compensation

In addition to their remunerations to key management personnel, the Group also provides non-cash benefits
to directors and executive officers, and contributes o a post-employment defined benefit plan on their
behalf. Remuneration for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017 of key management can be detailed
as follows:

Decomber 31, 2018 B December 31,2017
Other Othey

Description CEGQ  Directors  exceutives Total Cro Directors  executives Total
Managerial

remuneration 726,300 1,452,600 1,326,017 3,504,917 726,650 1,453,300 1218400 3,398,350
Allowances 280,000 617,500 511,995 1,409,495 280,000 582,500 573,853 1,436,353
Bonuses - 286,500 286,500 : 520,000 520,000
Other Benefits 187,583 200,522 - 388,105 168,132 235,743 - 403,875
End of Service

Benefits 75,000 81,000 96,632 252,632 75,000 121,875 249,500 446,375
Board member

fees 200,000 1,600,000 - 1,800,000 200,000 1,500,000 - 1,700,000
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANEGEMENTS

31

32.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain office properties, show Tooms,
warehouse and employees® accommodation and land. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 7

years and rentals are fixed over the lease period.

Paymenls recognized as an expense

2018 2017
SR SR

Payments under operating leases recognized as
an expense during the year 87,734,866 81,200,405

Commitments for minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease are as follow:

2018 2017
SR SR
2018 - 72,083,878
2019 85,427,744 70,964,009
2020 64,475,226 50,935,589
2021 60,350,960 58,471,159
2022 61,211,674 53,465,352
2023 59,778,749 48,057,064
Thereafter 394,544,051 341,591,797
725,788,404 695,568 848
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, the Group had the following contingencies and commitments:
2018 2017
SR SR
etters of credit §4,529,751 35,229,776
Letters of guarantees 14,077,944 1,880,224

The Group is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business, The Group does not believe that the
outcome of these court cases will have any material impact on the Group's results or financial position.

COMMITMENT FOR EXPENDITURE

The capital commitments related to ongeing activities of the Group's various exhibitions is as follows:

2018 2017
SR SR
Commitments for Group's various exhibitions 17,162,614 2,259 870
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and accounts payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial
assets include accounts receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The Group's senior management regularly review the policies and procedures
to ensure that all the financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's
policies and risk objectives. The Group does not engage into any hedging activities. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

a} Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: commission rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk include loans and borrowings. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position
as at December 31, 2018.

Commission risk

Commission rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrament wil] fluctuate
because of changes in market commission rates, The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
commission rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term and short term loans with floating commission
rates. The Group manages its exposure to commission rate risk by continuously monitoring movements in
commission rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in commission rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before
zakat is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

2018 2017
,,,,,,,, SR SR
Profit before zakat
Increase by 100 points 1,205,536 1,326,892
Decrease by 100 points (1,205,536) (1,326,892)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group deals mainly in US Dollars, United Arab Emirates
Dirham (AED) and Saudi Riyal. As the Saudi Riyal is pegged to the US Dollars and AED, the Group is not
exposed to significant foreign currency risk.

Commodity risk

The Group is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations of the price of various merchandise supplies. The
Group prepares annual budgets and periodic forecasts including sensitivity analyses in respect of various
levels of such merchandise to manage the risk.

b} Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and accounts receivables as follows:
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2018 2017

L SK SR

Cash and cash equivalent 16,333,485 27,320,630
Accounts receivable 30,625,806 21,050,760
46,959,201 48,371,390

Cash and cash eguivalents and term deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury
department in accordance with the Group's policy. The Group seeks to manage its credit risk with respect to
banks by only dealing with reputable banks. At the reporting date, nio significant concentration of credit risk
were identified by the management.

Accounts receivable

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures
and control relating (o customer credit risk management. Trade reccivables of the Group are spread across
large number of credit customers. The Group seeks to manage its credit risk with respect to customers by
selting credit limits for individual customers, monitoring outstanding receivables and ensuring close follow
ups. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers,
In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. Note 19 details the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets
that are not cash and cash equivalents. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade
accounts receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate
in largely independent markets.

¢) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to realize financial assets
quickly at an amount close to its fair value. The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring working
capital and cash flow requirements on regular basis. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that
bank facilities are available. The Group's term of revenue and services Tequire amounts to be paid within 30
to 90 days of the date of submitting the invoice. Trade payables are normally settled within 60 to 120 days
of the date of purchase.

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Group's undiscounted financial liabilities at December 3 1,
2018, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

Less than 1to5  Aboves
one year years vears Total
SR SR SR SR
December 31, 2018
Accounts payable 222,483,732 - 222,483,732
Accrued expenses and other
liabilitics 64,068,940 . - 64,068,940
Borrowings 64,719,656 62,542 567 - 127,262,223
351,272,328 62,542,567 - 413,814,895
December 31, 2017
Accounts payable 158,432 866 158,432,866
Accrued expenses and other
liahilities 61,715,348 - 61,715,348
Bormrowings 53,823,817 89,583,647 - 143,407,464
273,972,031 89,583,647 - 363,555,678
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34,

35,

6.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that arc within the scope of IFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

¢ Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their fair value. The Group
only presents unquoted equity investments at FVTOCI under fair valuation model,

The following table shows the fair values of financial asset, including its level in the fair value hierarchy.

2018 2017
SR SR

Level 3
Unqguoted equity investments at FVTOCI 9,662,153 9,662,153

There were no transfers among level 1, 2, and 3 for the year ended December 31, 2018 and for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to year end, the Group Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 26, 2019 resolved
to distribute cash dividends to the Company's shareholders amounting to SR 36 million at SR 1 per share.,

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This consolidated financial information have been approved by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2019
corresponding to 21 Jumada IT 1440.
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